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April 23, 2012 
 
 
 
 
To:  All Prospective Contractors 
 
 
 
 

RE:  “Key Data Entry for the Beverage Container Recycling Program, DRR12001” 
 

Addendum No. 3 
To the Request for Proposal (DRR12001) 

 
 

Below are questions received in response to this RFP: 
 
Q1.   Is it possible to gain temporary access to DORIIS for data entry testing purposes? 
 
A1. Yes, please send a written request to Butch Mosley at butch.mosley@calrecycle.ca.gov and he 

will grant you access.   
 
Q2.  How long is the retention for the images and paper? 
 
A2.  The retention is until the end of the contract term. 
 
Q3.  Are you looking for a repository for the scanned images? 
 
A3. Yes, we will expect for the contractor to be able to provide a PDF version that CalRecycle will 

have possession of at the conclusion of this contract. 
 
Q4. Are there samples of the forms to be entered online?  
 
A4.  Please refer to Attachment 3 for samples. 

Q5.  Who is the current contractor? 

A5.  RICOH, USA. 

Q6. Besides the reported service of the scanning and data entry and uploading of the data images, do 
you address any of the other requirements such as customer service? 

A6. Yes, there is a requirement for the contractor to establish what we call a “Liaison Unit”, in which 
the client has a point of contact to call if there is a problem or question. 
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Q7.  What do you expect the volume of these customer service calls to be? 

 
A7.  Currently, on average, 260 calls per month are received regarding claims and 450 calls 

requesting forms. 

 
Q8.  With the additional services that are being required such as providing a “Liaison Unit” to answer 

emails and phone calls, it seems that the contractor is expected to provide more than just data 
entry, correct?  

 
A8. Yes, there is a requirement that the contractor will contact the supplier in the event that there is 

an error in their data entry.   

 
Q9. Since the forms are available for the supplier to access, does the contractor have to keep these 

available in-house? 

 
A9.  The contractor should have the forms available to provide to the supplier if they request them.  

These printing costs involved will be reimbursed when CalRecycle receives the invoice. 

 
Q10.  How long has this project been going on? 

 
A10. The recycling program began in 1987.  RICOH, USA became our first contractor for this project in 

1990.  A new RFP solicitation process opens every 3 years.    

 
Q11.  Has there ever been another contractor awarded? 

  
A11.  No. 

Q12. Is there anything specific that you could suggest that would encourage other potential proposers 
to submit their proposals when, it seems that RICOH, USA will win again?   

  
A12. Although it‟s true that RICOH, USA has had this contract for 7 cycles, we encourage everyone to 

submit their proposals.  The fact is they have typically been the only ones who submit a 

responsive proposal.  Therefore, they are awarded the contract.  It is our hope that we will 

receive an abundance of responsive proposals for the upcoming cycle. 

Q13. Is this a new requirement for services or a follow on contract?  If a follow on, who is the 
incumbent? 

A13. No, it is not a follow on contract. 

Q14. Can work that has been performed outside the continental United States (OCONUS) be provided 
as experience in our proposal? 

A14. Yes, as long as it relates to the Scope of Work. 

Q15. Can you provide the fields that need to be entered from each form? 

A15. Please refer to Attachment 3. 

Q16. Please provide copies of 3 invoices relating to the current contract. 

A16. Please refer to Attachment 2.  



Q17. One section of the RFP says this: CalRecycle expects a minimum of three percent (3%) of the 
project services to be contracted to a California OSDS Certified DVBE that performs a 
commercially useful function.  
 
However, a different portion of this RFP stated that: Any Bidder competing in this process as a 
California Certified Disabled Veterans Business Enterprise, or as a non-DVBE certifying to 
subcontract a minimum of 3% of the total contract services to a California Certified DVBE, will 
receive a preference… 

Is the 3% of work completed by a DVBE required for this project, or is it an optional benefit?  

A17. As stated in the solicitation for this project, the proposals who certify to subcontract a minimum of 
3% of the total contract services to a California Certified DVBE, will receive a preference.  
Therefore, it is an optional benefit if a proposal includes this information with their submittal. 

Q18. What are the scanning volumes? The RFP states: 25,000 and 1,200 but it is not clear if those 
numbers are claims or images?  

A18. These are numbers of claims.  All claims and the envelopes in which they were contained are to 
be scanned. 

 
Q19. Page 10 of the RFP states to “use the sample cost proposal worksheet (attachment 3) as a guide 

in preparing your cost proposal”. Is this labeled Attached A (pages 33 and 34) in the RFP?   

A19. No you should be using the worksheets on pages 10 and 11 for preparing the budgets for the 
contract year and option years. 

Q20. What are the fields for data entry? 

A20. Please refer to Attachment 3 for file up specifications and screen prints. 

Q21. What is the accuracy rate for data entry? At the field or character level? 

A21. It is the field level. 

Q22. The RFP states that all services must be provided within 25 miles of CalRecycle HQ.  Is that still 
a requirement?  

A22. Yes.  Documents must be moved between CalRecycle and the Contractor daily.  The Contractor 
must retrieve the claims from the designated Post Office box. 

Q23. As a government contract is the current pricing available? If yes, what is it?  If no, why not?  

A23. Please see Attachment 2 for copies of the last three months invoices. 

Q24. What is the PO Box pick up location address? 

A24. P.O. Box 277820, Sacramento, CA 95827 

Q25. Who do we contact for help with understanding how DORIIS works? 

A25. Please call the DORIIS helpdesk at 800.RECYCLE. 

Q26. What is the current annual billing? 

A26. The current annual billing is $645,964.14. 

Q27. Are volumes expected to increase or decrease over the next 5 years? 



A27. They seemed to have leveled over the past two years. 

Q28. How many people are currently utilized in the Liaison Unit?  

A28. 3. 

Q29. What are the State holidays for 2012 and 2013? 

A29. 2012: Jan 2, 16, Feb 20, May 28, Jul 4, Sep 3, Nov 12, 22, 23, Dec 25 

2013: Jan 1, 21, Feb 18, Apr 1, May 27, Jul 4, Sep 2, Nov 11, 28, 29, Dec 25 

Q30. What is the volume of claims managed by the Liaison Unit annually? 

A30. There were 264,496 claims during the last 12 months. 

Q31. Are the volumes steady month to month or are there peak months? If yes, what are the peak 
months and the peak volumes? 

A31. The peak during the last 12 months was 27,514 in July of 2011 and a low of 21,413 in November 
of 2011.  There don‟t seem to be predictable peaks and valleys in the claim volume. 

 
Q32. Does CalRecycle utilize the CMAS or MSA contracts for purchasing?  If yes, must all bidders  

hold a CMAS/MSA contract with the state? 

A32. CalRecycle utilizes these for purchasing contracts on occasion, but is not required. 

Q33. Will a “short list” of vendors be chosen to allow for proof of concept testing and evaluation?  If no, 
will vendors have the opportunity to provide samples for evaluation by CalRecycle? 

A33. No, the contracting process does not allow for that. 

Q34. For documents that will be keyed off line and uploaded in a batch, how do we assure, in advance, 

that the data is correct and will be accepted by the DORIIS edits? 

A34. File transfer issues stem from: 
 

i. A difference between the submitted file calculations and those of DORIIS 

exceeding a dollar-value tolerance.  Most of the time, these are due to the 

following reasons: 

Participant used incorrect rate 
Shrinkage/percent reduction was not noted on Shipping Report form 
Shrinkage/percent reduction was not keyed in by contractor 
Key data errors (missing/misplaced decimal) 
Calculation errors 
 

ii. Operational date 

iii. R&L Date overlap 

iv. Required fields left null 

 

a. Provide the edits and calculations that must be performed. 

Shrinkage  



Redemption Wt = (Received Wt)*(Statewide Commingled Rate for material type/Statewide 

Segreagated Rate for material type) 

Processing Payment = (Processing Payment Rate)*(Redemption Wt) 

Admin Fee = (Refund Value)*(Admin Fee Rate, currently 0.0075) 

Processor Invoice Grand Total = (Total Refund Value Paid) + (Total Processing Payment) + 

(Total Admin Fee) 

Shipping Report Total Payment Due = (Refund Value) + (Processing Payment) + (Admin 

Fee) 

 

b. Currently, the calculations are using different rates for different materials, shippers and/or 

periods. Will this continue to be the case? 

Yes. 

 

c. How will the contractor know who the valid participants are and the timeframe they are valid 

for? Will CalRecycle provide a file and update it as the data changes? 

The DORIIS Support Unit is working with the current contractor to provide an electronic file(s) 

for Disbursement and Accounts Receivable participants. 

 

d. Currently, about 10 calls per day are made to participants to resolve errors or obtain missing 

information, most of which require a call back. Will these calls still be required or should the 

document in error be denied? 

Yes.  Only certain documents with errors, such as submitting a report outside of Operational 

Dates should be denied. 

 

e. What happens if there is an error in the file when DORIIS processes it? What process is 

required by the contractor to resolve any error? 

If there is an error in the file during the Upload process, contractor contacts the DORIIS 

Support Unit for resolution. 

Q35. The contractor is to provide a hard copy notice to the participants of errors they made on the 

documents or if a document is denied. 

A35 (a-e) 

a. What are the reasons for denying a document? How would the contractor know? 

 

The requirements for submitting claims and reports are identified in the respective participant 

manuals.  An error such as a form being unsigned or dated would be grounds for denial. 

 

b. What types of errors require notice and what types don‟t? 

 
Errors relating to payment will require a notice. 

c. Is there still a required method to send notices? 

Currently, via U.S. Postal Service. 

 



 

d. Currently, both the submitted and corrected data for each field changed is on the notice and 

sent to both the shipper and receiver. Will this continue to be the case? 

Yes. 

e. For each shipper and receiver, are the notices sent to the address on the form or somewhere 

else (accounting office)? If somewhere else, how will we know to do this and what the correct 

address is? 

The data will be available on DORIIS. 
 

Q36. The contractor is to provide a liaison unit for the purpose of answering all requests for information 

and assistance from the program participants statewide regarding paper claims. 

A36 (a-b) 

a. Currently, there are 5 to 10 requests for information a day and about 10 tracer requests a 

week. Do you anticipate this to continue at these volumes? 

Yes. 

b. If the request concerns the claim after it has been entered into DORIIS, will the contractor 

have full training and access to DORIIS to determine how to answer the request or trace the 

claim? 

The DORIIS support unit controls the privileges in DORIIS.  They will grant the appropriate 
privileges to the contractor. 

 

Q37. Dissemination of participant reports. 

A37 (a-b) 

a. There are currently up to 10 pallets of continuous feed report forms printed and stored for 

fulfilling participant requests for forms. Is this the anticipated future level the contractor must 

maintain in inventory? 

The level of report and claim forms on hand will be determined by the contractor and contract 

manager.  It may change as more participants utilize the DORIIS portal. 

b. For all form types (DR-3, DR-4, DR-6, DR-7 and DR-14) there are currently 10 to 20 requests 

for forms to be mailed per day. Do you anticipate this to continue at these volumes? 

The number of claims processed monthly seems to have stabilized at about 25,000 per month. 
 

Q38. Please provide samples of the documents/forms to be captured 

A38. Please refer to Attachment 3. 
 

Q39. Please provide index field specifications including: 

A39. (a-c) 



a. Field Name 
The specifications for the file upload are available at 
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Contracts/details.asp?ID=1054 

b. Field Type (text, number, date) 
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Contracts/details.asp?ID=1054 

c. Field Length (# of characters) 
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Contracts/details.asp?ID=1054 

Q40. What repository will images be going into? (our host or yours) 

A40. The Contractor hosted with web access. 
 
Q41. What format do images need to be? 

A41. Please refer to http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Contracts/details.asp?ID=1054 for samples of the 
format.   

Q42. Please provide historical volume of average calls and e-mails per month for the liaison role. 

A42. Currently, on average, 260 calls per month are received regarding claims and 450 calls 
requesting forms. 

Q43. Please confirm that PO Box address can be changed to a different California address by winning 
bidder. 
 

A43. No, it cannot be changed at the present.  Forms are printed with the address to which to submit 
them. 

 
Q44. Please describe required daily courier services and current process and location. 

A44. Currently, the courier picks up in the morning at the POB and takes the mail to the contractor 
location for processing.  The previous days‟ transactions are taken to CalRecycle‟s operation at 
801 K Street, Sacramento, CA  95814, 19

th
 floor.  Pick up the previous days deposits at that 

location and taken to the contractor location for entry. 
 
Q45. Is the maximum budget of $700,000 for the 1 year contract term? 

A45. Yes. 

 
Q46. What are CalRecycle‟s plans for after the contract term expires July 2013? (go to bid again or 
              will project be all done?)  In Section IV it clarifies that the contract is for a 1 year term with 2  
              one year options to extend, so the $700,000 is for the possible 3 year term? 

A46. At the end of the first year at CalRecycle‟s sole option, the contract option may be exercised and    
the contract amended for time and additional funding based on the budget submitted by the 
winning proposer for FY 2013-14. 

 
Q47. Evaluation Criteria. 

a. Section IV specifies 60% is cost, so how is other 40% broken down? 

A47. This was a typographical error.  The Proposal Scoring Sheet (Attachment B) states that, to qualify 
for the Cost Opening, the Proposer MUST achieve an overall subtotal score of 80%.  Therefore, 
the Costs will be the remaining 20%. 

 

Q48. How is 25,000 Operations volume estimate derived? 

http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Contracts/details.asp?ID=1054
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Contracts/details.asp?ID=1054
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Contracts/details.asp?ID=1054
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A48. It is derived from the previous 12 invoices. 
 

Q49. How is 1,200 Program Reports volume estimate derived? 

A49. It is derived from the previous 12 invoices. 
 
Q50. Can you provide an estimated quantity of each type of paper form and report that the vendor 

would be expected to process?  

A50. DR3 1,271; DR4 1; DR6 25,931; DR7 1,822; DR14 362 
 

Q51. Can you provide an estimated quantity of paper forms that the vendor would be required to 
provide to program participants? 

A51. This varies as to the number of participants utilizing the DORIIS portal. 
 

Q52. It appears that DORIIS allows for import of a batch data file for the DR-6 reports. Does DORIIS 
allow for import of data for any other report types? 

A52. Yes, the DR 14. 
 

Q53. The RFP refers to travel. Is any type of travel (other than the daily pick up of reports from the post 
office) required?  If so, please provide examples and estimated frequency and distances. 

A53. The contractor may be required to attend or conduct training on the submission of paper claims 
and reports. 

 

Q54. How will the proposal be evaluated? Section IV states: Costs will be 60% of the score. What 
constitutes the remaining 40%? 

A54. This was a typographical error.  The Proposal Scoring Sheet (Attachment B) states that, to qualify 
for the Cost Opening, the Proposer MUST achieve an overall subtotal score of 80%.  Therefore, 
the Costs will be the remaining 20%. 

               

Q55. Do amended claims get billed at the same rate? 

A55. Yes. 
 

Q56. Can you provide a rough estimated number (annually) of requests for information from the 
program participants? 

A56. Currently on average 260 calls per month are received per month regarding claims and 450 calls 
requesting forms from program participants.  The contractor receives emails and calls from 
CalRecycle to research all types of questions frequently, probably 40 a month. Emails from 
participants are about 5 per month. 

 

Q57. Can you provide a rough estimated number (annually) of claim tracer requests from the program 
participants? 

A57. It‟s not broken out but it would be included in the 260 calls per month received per month 
regarding claims. 

 

Q58. Can you provide a list of the data validations performed by the DORIIS system? 



A58. They are explained in the participant manuals. Please refer to 
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Contracts/details.asp?ID=1054 and also 
http://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/BevContainer/DORIIS/Resources/ManualBMD.pdf . 
 

Q59. Does DORIIS provide for a test environment that could be used by a new vendor prior to the start 
of a new contract? 

A59. Yes 
 

Q60. Can you please provide clarification on your cost proposal sheets? Are we expected to submit the 
Cost Proposal sheet in Section IV as well as the Cost Proposal sheet in Attachment A? How do 
these two forms relate to each other?  Please explain the „Total Direct Labor‟ line item on the 
Cost Proposal sheet in Section IV. 

A60. Use the format of the Cost Proposal that is provided in Section IV.  Use the Sample Cost 
Proposal Worksheet (Attachment A) as a guide in preparing your cost proposal.   

Q61. The RFP states that the vendor may be required to attend State Training. Where would such 
training take place, and how long would the training period be? Please provide examples of such 
training. 

A61. CalRecycle has not required such State Training in prior years, and does not anticipate any in the 
future. 

 

Attachment 1 to this Addendum No. 1 for the Request for Proposal (RFP) for Key Data Entry for the 
Beverage Container Recycling Program, DRR12001 is a listing of contractors who have signed up to be 
included on CalRecycle‟s interested parties listing. 

All other terms, conditions, and requirements of this RFP will remain the same. 

If you have any questions relating to this RFP process, please contact me at 916.341.6120 or at 
contracts@calrecycle.ca.gov. 

Sincerely, 

{Original Signed By} 

Wendy Roberson 
Contract Analyst 
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Contact Name Company City State Zip E-Mail SB DVBE 

Rose Chow 
 

Datagraphic Computer Services, Inc 
 

North Hollywood 
 

CA 
 91605 

data5@pacbell.net 

 X 

 Jack Fisher  

 
RICOH USA 

 
Rancho Cordova 

 CA 95670 
Jack.Fisher@Ricoh-USA.com 

 

  

Tom Denton 
 

American Microimaging, Inc. 
 

Los Angeles 
 CA 

 

90017 

 
tom@amipaperless.com 

 

  Armando Salas 
 

WaterWise Consulting, Inc. 
 

Glendora 
 CA 91740 

asalas@waterwise-consulting.com 

 X 

 Rich Jenness 
 

SoftFile 
 

Sacramento 
 CA 95815 

richj@softfile.com 

 X 

 Lorenzo J Frasca 
 

J A Frasca % Associates 
 

Sacramento 
 CA 95816 

lorenzo@jafrasca.com 

 X 

 Michelle Morgan 
 

Michelle's Lien Sales 
 Tracy CA 95377 

justthree4me@yahoo.com 
 X 

 Muriel 

Beaver0Marques 
 

Transcription Express 
 

Kaneohe 
 HI 96744 

muriel@transcription-express.net 
 X 

 Matt Monaghan  

 
SoftFile 

 
Sacramento 
 CA 95815 mattm@softfile.com X 

 Laurel McAdams 
 

DataBank IMX 
 West Sacramento CA 95605 

lmcadams@databankimx.com 
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